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¢ National Reconciliation: Indja cimented th of tr?e President and the Prime

Minister to take Sri Lanka towadrds genuine recorciliatten and development, so that all Sri
Lankans, including the Sri LankanJamil commiy couild live lives of equality, justice, peace

and dignity in a united Srj Aanka.
O )
R ) ) t

- Y —-—h&‘—}

G )
D G (D ) ) e s ® & )

) (e

Comment Q/‘ \
S

Out of scope

Out of scope



S ©(2)(a)

From: GENEVA

Sent: Thursday, 17 September 2015 8:43 a.m.

To: UNHC; SEA; LGL; NEW DELHI

Cc: DS MLG; ...ASEAN POSTS; DS AAG; CEO; GENEVA; IDG PHM; FM.P/S MFA; ISED
Subject: FORMAL MESSAGE: OHCHR INVESTIGATION REPORT ON SRI LANKA RELEASED
Attachments: A_HRC_30_61_ENG.docx; Srilanka_GD_2.pdf

Summary

On 16 September the OHCHR's Report on Promoting Reconciliation, Accountability and H ights in Sri Iﬁn

was submitted to the Human Rights Council. The report concluded that “gross violat; i ationa

rights law” and “serious violations of international humanitarian law and internati crimes>were ow@%

all parties to the conflict, many of which may amount to war crimes. Of the-fange ecommendat j Sri

Lankan government and the international community, the most no I%%@hat a hybrig\ co ould be
since | that Sri Lankan

established to try the alleged violations committed by all parties to

domestic processes alone would not be adequate to progress the ding i

Action $

UNHC, SEA & LGL — for your consideration in prepari tatement h ion on the Report at the Human

Rights Council, scheduled for 30 Septemb @o guidance on the follow-up resolution being run
s cil sessign)

by the US and UK at the current Hu \
Report b %
on 25/1, on 16 September the OHCHR’s Report on Promoting

1 Pursuantte H ik ghts Colingci

Reconciliation, % ity and"Human s in Sri Lanka was released on 16 September (attached). The Human
Rights Cadnci eferre ‘S}\%&?tion of the Report from June until this session, following “signals of
engagement the y ed Sri Lankan Government in January 2015, and the prospect of further

information coming(t : Lh\g decision to delay the report seems to have been well judged, with the report able
to take acco itive change in political circumstances in Sri Lanka.
alfindings

Ol 6

2 The Report documents some of the key findings of the OHCHR Investigation on Sri Lanka (OISL), noting
these give reasonable grounds to believe “gross violations of international human rights law” and “serious violations
of international humanitarian law and international crimes” were committed by all parties to the conflict, many of
which may amount to war crimes. OISL’s findings are expanded on in an accompanying OISL Report (linked here
(261pgs,5.95mb)).

3 OISL found evidence of: unlawful killings by both parties; arbitrary detention by Government forces, which
reportedly led to enforced disappearances and extrajudicial killings; torture by Government forces; sexual and
gender based violence by Government forces (against men and women detainees as part of what appeared to be a
deliberate policy to inflict torture); abduction and forced recruitment by the LTTE; recruitment of children and use in
hostilities by the LTTE; attacks by both parties putting civilians at risk; interference with civilians’ liberty of
movement by LTTE (compelling them to remain in hostile areas); denial of humanitarian assistance by the
Government and failures to protect humanitarian personnel by LTTE; and screening and deprivation of liberty of
internally displaced persons by the Government.

Inadequate domestic mechanisms



4 The Report found that Sri Lanka’s criminal justice system is not yet ready or equipped to conduct an
independent and credible investigation into the alleged violations, or to hold those responsible accountable. It
welcomed the new Government’s commitments to end impunity and ensure accountability (outlined in a statement
made by the Sri Lankan Minister of Foreign Affairs to the Human Rights Council on 14 September — copy attached),
but identified three key reasons why Sri Lanka’s criminal justice system was not yet ready or equipped to conduct an
independent and credible investigation into the alleged violations, or to hold those responsible accountable: (i)
there was no reliable system for victim and witness protection; (ii) Sri Lanka’s domestic legal framework did not
provide a basis to deal with international crimes of this magnitude; and (iii) the independence and integrity of key
institutions within Sri Lanka’s security sector and justice system remain compromised.

Recommendations

5 The Report makes recommendations to the Sri Lankan Government and to the United Nations system and
Member States, aimed at addressing impunity and ensuring accountability for the alleged violations of human rights
and humanitarian law in Sri Lanka. A comprehensive set of recommendations was included in-the accompanying

OISL Report. The Report made the following key recommendations for the Governmen r\l_anka Whl%
outside the scope of the measures Foreign Minister Samaraweera announced in t nts Co Q}s
week: o
O \Jj
o  “Adopt a specific legislation establishing an ad hoc hybrid special internati )3/\ judges,
prosecutors, lawyers and investigators, mandated to try war-crimes . manity, with jts own
independent investigative and prosecuting organ, defepce protection programme,
and resource it so that it can promptly and effec Lqe/];}r\f espon ated benefit of this mechanism
is that it will give Sri Lankans confldence in th md@m,nc)ence andfi ity of the process.

e “Invite OHCHR to establish a H ntry r nitor the human rights situation, advise on

implementation of the Hi h\C & s reeo .' ns and of all HRC resolutions, and provide technical
assistance.”
<
8 Th @ i kes(c comm |0ns to the United Nations system and Member States, including to
“le]nsu ESJQ%@ no/:: -refoule mn‘s who have suffered torture and other human rights violations until
guarant e n- recur chja ﬁ'tc:ent to ensure that they will not be subject to further abuse, in particular

torture an exual viot

NE’XI’ ste

F? eptember discussion in the HRC will be a useful opportunity for member and observer states to
r al views on the report and any future action that might take place.

i
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G G6(a) BWe will revert seeking instructions on engagement in the negotiations

once the draft text is released.






14 September 2015, Geneva

The Permanent Mission of Sri Lanka to the United Nations
and other International Organizations in Geneva




Statement by
Hon. Mangala Samaraweera, MP
Minister of Foreign Affairs of Sri Lanka

General Debate of the 30" Session of the UN Human Rights Council
Geneva, 14 September 2015

Mr. President

High Commissioner for Human Rights
Excellencies

Distinguished delegates

| would like to begin by thankin% you, and the members e uéil for th/\t@
reposed in Sri Lanka at the 28" Session and agreei @@r e rel e%
Report of the OHCHR Investigation on Sri Lanka. {% @
@ ; g\éé;;ggpace to begin
e meht\ with> the international
community, including the High Commissioner : 1Qf:u
start taking steps aimed i

democratic institutions, good -govefrnance of law, and confidence building
among communities affected\by eonflict forma

. o

% of th <r> National Front for Good Governance (UNFGG) at the
Parfiamentary-éle month, enabled President Sirisena and Prime Minister Ranil
Wi esin

e
re oLform a National Unity Government. Traditional rivals in Sri Lankan

The time granted by the Council gave th
implementing its reform agenda, r

t e‘together, heralding a new culture of consensual politics in the country and

ting'much needed political and policy stability.

An important feature in the August 17" election was the return of centrists to power in
the legislature and the resounding defeat of extremists on both sides of the divide. As a
result, the moderates in Parliament have once again secured power which augers well
for progressive reform. This includes ensuring that the universal values of equality,
justice, and freedom are upheld by fostering reconciliation between communities and
securing a political settlement.

Inaugurating the 8" Parliament just two weeks ago on the 1%t of September, President
Sirisena drew from the example of South Africa where the main political parties came
together at a historic moment in that country. He affirmed that similarly, in the post-
conflict context in Sri Lanka, the formation of a National Unity Government is essential
to obtain the bipartisan consensus that is necessary to face the important challenges
before our nation, which include reconciliation and peacebuilding.




Upholding good governance practices, the Parliament, on 1% September, rightly
appointed as the Leader of the Opposition, the head of the Tamil National Alliance, Mr.
R. Sampanthan, who is the leader of the Party that obtained the third highest number of
votes at the election.

The appointment of the Tamil National Alliance leader as Leader of the Opposition, as
well as the appomtment of the 44" Chief Justice of Sri Lanka in January were clear
messages that in the new Sri Lanka, extraneous considerations such as ethnicity,
religion, class or gender would not be used to deny anyone their rightful place.

Mr. President, @
From May 2009 post-conflict reconciliation efuded us as a res -S|ght
policies and the triumphalist approach that was adopted im [at l wsng t

of the conflict. The National Unity Government is now a

as a matter of urgent priority.

oncm

atlonal Unlty

the country, not in -

As a Government that is responsible and 2
Government remains firm in its resolve

the least because of assurances given\to t afional . unl‘ty at any point in
time, but because this is the ' tice, remove the causes of
terrorism and achieve a %@ for the ring people in our country

Mr. Presiden %

W ree, i\oncn § is a process and it will take time. Many, | know are
@% e un

heir impatience and their right to be so. However, this
8 my planned Our nation has faltered far too many times since

g%@ e cannot afford to fail once again.

Government of Sri Lanka recognises fully that the process of reconciliation
mvolves addressing the broad areas of truth seeking, justice, reparations and non-
recurrence and for non-recurrence to become truly meaningful, the necessity of
reaching a political settlement that addresses the grievances of the Tamil people.

With the mandate granted by the people, the President, Prime Minister, and the
Government have already taken some important steps to create the conditions required
for initiating a dialogue aimed at a political settlement.

As you are aware, Mr President, item 93 of President Sirisena’s manifesto in the lead
up to the January 2015 election expressed the intention of the common candidate, if
elected, to address issues of accountability through national independent judicial
mechanisms.

Accountability is essential to uphold the rule of law and build confidence in the people
of all communities of our country, in the justice system. We also recognise fully, the

3




importance of judicial and administrative reform in this process. These are essential
factors that must be addressed for the culture of accountability and the rule of law
which have eroded through years of violence to once again be ingrained in our society.
We recognise how important this is to prevent impunity not only for violations of human
rights but corruption and other crimes; and how vital these processes are for the long-
term development of our country and for the peace dividend to be felt by all our citizens
including generations to come. These are lessons we have not only learnt from the
experiences of other countries, but also from our own history and recent past.

The ideas that the Government has evolved for setting up independent, credible and

empowered mechanisms for truth seeking, justice, reparations and guarantees of non-
recurrence within the framework of the Constitution include the following: @ «
. b
ms; >
N\

-For truth seeking, the establishment by statute, o@@% is
(i) a Commission for Truth, Justice %@tion an I\TQ -T nce
to be evolved in consultation wit levan @ f South

as i

Africa. This mechanism is ual structure; a

gnitaries from all
ountry cture composed of

‘Compassionate Counci
major religions i\ t
Commissioners:. F ny @ man rights abuses, from

rators are unclear for a judicial
a in_disc
discove the%r t
@ shise of i@
v (iixan O& n Missing Persons based on the principle of the families'

\ﬁ;h\ practices of the state and society
ion, this Commission will allow them to

?&@ t\yknow, to be set up by Statute with expertise from the ICRC,

n line with internationally accepted standards.

% -On the Right to Justice, what is being proposed is for a Judicial Mechanism
with a Special Counsel to be set up by Statute. This takes into account the
right of victims to a fair remedy and aims to address the problem of impunity
for human rights violations suffered by all communities. There have been
previous instances as well in Sri Lanka when criminal justice mechanisms of
different kinds have been set up. This, therefore, is not at all an alien
concept. Neither is it aimed at a particularly group of persons, but something
that is essential in terms of upholding the rule of law, and creating a society
that respects the rule of law.

-On the Right to Reparations, an Office for Reparations to be set up by
Statute to facilitate the implementation of recommendations relating to
reparations made by the proposed Commission on Truth, Justice,
Reconciliation and Non-recurrence, the Office of the Missing Persons, the
LLRC and any other entity;




Mr President,

In order to guarantee non-recurrence, it is proposed that a series of
measures would be undertaken including administrative and judicial reform,
and the adoption of a new Constitution. A series of measures including
amending the penal code to criminalise hate speech and enforced
disappearances are also in process. The best guarantee for non-recurrence
is of course a political settlement that addresses the grievances of the Tamil
people. We hope that we can achieve this through the adoption of a new
Constitution. A Constituent Assembly of Parliament will be set up for this
purpose shortly.

Mr. President, @@ «
These mechanisms will be evolved and designed through ﬁ\ggeg\of con?@@sﬂ
ism-| to
a

involving all stakeholders, including victims. Moreover % hanis anv ?fg
have the freedom to obtain assistance, both fi i ial and wical ffom our

n
international partners including the OHCHR. 5@ )

Additionally, Mr. President, the Gover g\ ' i @e thening the National
Human Rights Commission in line-wi Mris Principles; sign>and ratify the International
Convention for the Protectio ﬁrsons fro isappearances without delay;
maintain the moratoriu Wi

iew to its ultimate abolition; release
previous Presidentia Repo Udalagama and Paranagama by the
end of this mn%; hegin ing :'

temporary meb ure, of Telief; \ement of the military from commercial activities;
undert curity-sector re ninvite a series of Special Rapporteurs to undertake visits
| in2015

to_Sri and beyend; issue instructions clearly to all branches of the security

rce orture, ual violence and other human rights violations are prohibited

and\that t §§i sible will be investigated and punished; review and repeal the
r

f Ferrorism Act and replace it with anti-terrorism legislation in line with
ernational best practices; review the Public Security Ordinance Act; and
n ictim and Witness Protection Act which was enacted this year. Steps are also
@ ing taken by the Office of National Unity and Reconciliation to extend psychaosocial
(J:jpport to communities and individuals that are in need of such care. The pursuit of
engagement of Sri Lankans living overseas belonging to all communities, and inviting them
to assist in the Government's peacebuilding and reconciliation efforts is another
undertaking that we take seriously. In this context, the review of the listing of 18
organisations and 424 individuals last year, under the provisions of UN Security Council
Resolution 1373, is currently nearing completion.

Mr. President,

Defeating terrorism in Sri Lanka was a necessity. Today, we have greater freedom to deal
with the causes of terrorism and engage in nation-building and peacebuilding as a result of
the cessation of hostilities. The armed forces of our country have been hailed in the past
for their discipline and professionalism. However, the reputation of the vast majority of the
armed forces was tarnished because of the system and culture created by a few in
positions of responsibility.




Therefore, to all those who have doubts about a process of accountability, | would like to
say, please don’t fear. Maintain your confidence that a process of this nature would

impartially observe due process and, in fact, help restore the good name of the armed
forces.

As we restore the credibility of the armed forces, we look forward to further contributing to
peace and stability in the world through significantly greater engagement in peacekeeping
and humanitarian activities. In fact Sri Lanka recently signed on to the Kigali Principles on
the Protection of Civilians.

Mr. President,

Today, we have a Government in place which acknowledges the s i f victi
across Sri Lanka’s communities; a Government which recognizes the 55 of the(@
nment that

and is all too aware of the weaknesses of our institutions.
for‘its_own

selfish ends, but instead remains firmly committe eof al s,\remains
open to dialogue, and to address difficulties anddg ' ith he tance from
the international community where req

Those who are sceptical about Sri i a nation, and address all
these issues, are many. The 3 justice in Sri Lanka; that there
can never be recognitio g alsAll | have to say to them is: look at

what the people achiev

d not be held back by the fears and prejudices of the past. Let us

ithin the
when istson both sides of the divide failed to secure seats in
] refor say he sceptics: don’t judge us by the broken promises,
\ces ar%r the past. Let us design, define and create our future by our

spirati
@DSQ m. Let us not be afraid to engage in meaningful dialogue aimed at
[ to problems as opposed to pointing fingers, heaping blame and scoring

e are committed and we require the patient understanding not only of the international
community but all the right-minded citizens of Sri Lanka in this endeavour; we seek their
understanding and assistance in walking hand in hand with us on this journey.

This journey may not be as fast as some may want it to be. And for some, we may have
already gone too far. But the Government of President Maithripala Sirisena and Prime
Minister Ranil Wickremesinghe has the political will and the courage of their convictions to

ensure that we take the country forward, breaking the barriers of ignorance, fear, prejudice
and hate.

My plea to you Ladies and Gentlemen, is: trust us and join us to work together and create
the momentum required to move forward and take progressive, meaningful and
transformative steps to create a new Sri Lanka.

Thank you.
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From: NEW DELHI %

Sent: Wednesday, 19 August 2015 12:43 a.m.
To: SEA
Ce: UNHC; ISED; NAD; AMER; WASHINGTON; LOND

FM.Immigration NZ (Seemail); FM.DPMC
FM.P/S Trade; GENEVA; IDG GLO; IDG P : DG; NEW YORK:
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(BKK); DS APE; APD
Subject: Formal Message: Sri Lanka

tefs Black Rajapak m
Government of National Unit &
Formal Message: Sri Lankan Voters Blo ksa Co ack)\Paving Way for Government
of National Unity
Summary
° Sri Lanka held Parliamentary etections jesterday,~whic re described by election monitors as

the most free and fair in the coun istory. plwas, no significant electoral violence.
= The election results, anneunced today,

, Paving Way for

United People’s Freedomd A
o UNP won 106 seats /
remainder being w Mil, Mu

& iament, versus 95 for the UPFA, with the
and_Sdocialist parties who tend to favour UNP-led

Government. Wickr n is expel be sworn in again as Prime Minister tonight.

* The results consfifute cond reje A_in eight months of Rajapaksa by Sri Lankan voters,
with UPFA suffe nificant fa support right across the country, but especially in the
cities and amon i Lanka’s ethni ifies.

P-led Government which President Sirisena and

mesin ho will act as a unifying force after a decade of bitter
criminations ed by Rajapaksa’s rule. Sirisena wishes for the new

divisions/sand
governfénisto tvolve politicians frém both of Sri Lanka’s major political parties, including to
limit re thnicai@olitical parties.
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h they were %

4 The elections were noteworthy for the peaceful and orderl
Both Sri Lanka’s Elections Commissioner, and the country’s ind dent,~domesti ction
hailed the elections as the most free and fair in the countfy’s ory. Int
including from the European Union and the Commonwealth, were alse”compli
the elections were conducted.

onitors,
observers,

5 Today's results constitute a clear electoral rejecti ajapaksa, th H in eight months
for a man who only five years ago was the most po ent in B¢i history. His party
entered this year's election with a clear Parliamenta (144 sea P’s 60), having won

the previous 2010 elections in a landslide. But UPFA_sh
vote share dropping by around 18 percentage poif is Collapse
cities, and in those regions of Sri Lanka (especi @ :
concentrations of voters from Sri Lanka’s Tamil and™4slim min
and political elites also deserted Rajapaksa; \. e capital cit

point victory in 2010, this year Colombo re - ted for U

@ 5
. T T Y. WS TSR W

acrossySri Lanka, its national
ort was most acute in the
of the island) with high
e Colombo-based business

-to-39-percent margin.

— — T — R E—

7— Out Iv

toaay, describing lication ofthe “quiet revolution” launched by Sri Lankans in January.
Sirisena has alrea strate t “h&, wishes to concentrate on national reconciliation and
bolstering Sri Lahka’'s\rternational rep ion, whilst leaving other domestic policy to Wickremesinghe
and his Cabingf{ Sisisena also wishes, sholifd he be successful in wresting effective as well as putative

Rajaw both major parties to cooperate with one another under his

{ Out of scope lThe"esnt, whi ar leader of UPFA, warmly welcomed UNP’s victory
Vit
a s

control of the
Presidential leade

» bt

e

TR Out of scope P
ie‘mself as a historically important healing President, wishes to lead a

iae (
e o hatllal Uy

. — e

G /D O G @ GE @ G © G G @ G
S Out of scope
gy Sk

Out of scope Mike January’s Presidential poll,
arljamentary election revealed a closely divided country. With around 11 million Sri
sting’ ballots, UNP and UPFA were separated by fewer than 400,000 votes. Rajapaksa
lear favourite of a majority of Sinhalese Buddhists, especially the rural, southern poor.

Should the Sirisena/Wickremesinghe Administration come to be viewed as too pre-
2



occupied with “minority concerns” of reconciliation and political devolution, then Rajapaksa would, be
well placed to try to incite and then take advantage of a backlash among the Sinhalese majority.

10 For this reason, Sirisena and Wickremesinghe will aim to comman
drawn from Sri Lanka’s two major parties so that they do not have to for
Muslim political parties for confidence and supply in Parliament.

a Parliamentary
ly~ely upon the

ajorit
mil and

and UPFA combined.

Comment

11 Today's victory for Ranil Wickremesinghe and
Lankan politics. Having occupied a position of e
government, Mahinda Rajapaksa and his family have the Presidency and
from the Parliamentary majority. In doing so, Sri he curtain down on a
decade of often bitter divisions between the countr i i ethnic communities. In its
place, Sri Lankans have installed a government <

Unity, which can start to heal the divides opene

ine months in Sri
ynkan politics and

(e i s e L R \
Lankan voters, aims to make Sri Lanka be

engaged, and more socially cohesjve
/N
@ Ll (s A L e )

Out ofscope

Out of scope

-“‘ Out of scope
ENDS



S ©(2)(2)

From: NEW DELHI

Sent: Friday, 14 August 2015 12:57 a.m.

To: NEW DELHI; SEA

Cc: UNHC; ISED; NAD; AMER; WASHINGTON; LONDON; BEUING; OTTAWA; ..ASEAN

POSTS; FM.NZTE (Seemail); FM.MPI (Seemail); FM.EducationNZ (Seemail);
FM.Immigration NZ (Seemail); FM.DPMC (FPA) (contact); DS AAG; CEO; DS MLG;
FM.P/S Trade; GENEVA; IDG GLO; IDG PHM; IDG DSE; IDG SED; DS IDG; NEW YORK;
FM.P/S MFA; STR; FM.NAB (Seemail)

Subject: SRI LANKA: BUILD-UP TO THE GENERAL ELECTION ON 17 AUGUST: PROSPECTS
AND ISSUES

c

@ N\
g €

SRI LANKA: BUILD-UP TO THE GENERAL ELECTION ON 17 AUGUST: PROSPECT A 'S\B’ (\\\ﬂ

\ NN

@) Parliament.

emesmghe is picked to win the
f = coalition government broadly

Summary

On 17 August, Sri Lanka has a general election to elect its ?ﬁ%@ropor i

The United National Party (UNP) party of curren(\;n Mim tekR m}

most seats, which would leave it in the b d the far i
supportive of the reconciliation agenda< }k\ tS|r|sen

N

Lthout liberal use of state resources for the first time since 2005, former President
as campalgned effectively in his heartland areas, highlighting lack of visible economic
“Tamll gains” during the eight months of Sirisena/ Wickremesinghe government.

Thoughflghtin %
Rajapaka’ FP”

AnCR’ japaksa electoral momentum appears to have ebbed since the January Presidential election ( D

S T I e Sl ey SR S easepes el 6(a)

@ UNP victory would likely see a measure of stability and continuation of the positive trajectory towards

reconciliation and human rights observance prioritised under Sirisena. (D

Out of scope

Action

For information.

To note also, issues of particular areas of post-election interest: Human rights progress and issues (para 18-20); (il
TN s R s es s} Qut of scope
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Report

[x%]

On 17 August, Sri Lanka goes to the polls for its proportionally-elected 225 member parliament. High
Commissioner Grahame Morton made an accreditation visit to Sri Lanka from 27 to 31 July. The visit enabled
meetings that added to our assessment of the campaign and discussion with ministers of issues of importance to
New Zealand that may be impacted by results,{Qut of scope) human rights, Gl s P g )
G Out of scope B and developments in the Tamil North. (D
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17 The government meanwhile was worried about rumours that a faked Geneva human rights report critical of
Sri Lanka conduct during the end of the civil war and making recommendations on full Tamil autonomy might be
“leaked” publicly immediately prior to the polls. This would play to concerns that reconciliation was “going too far”

and that “foreign interference” was leading to the break-up of the country. (I D

ETET T e e e 5(h)

What are the campaign themes and what would they mean for New Zealand?

18 The main theme of the UNP campaign has been the importance of reconciliation an
if, as seems likely, it is in a position to lead a government then these can be expected to.agai

@ 0vernanceand
s ﬁ(
v
/
riority. (\sti

19 It was clear that if the UNP wins then the reconciliation programme e th op-

generally regard it as important and all saw the continued cultivation of > tdend as r Lf\r\rqg t\:/e/‘nﬁut of

both Tamil and Singhalese communities. The President’s prefere | gove Ament;- m-‘sl ding a variety
X\w Sare Vuman rights and

of parties, was clearly in part to try and ensure that whatever f t‘l\
power devolution have majority support. &

N xﬁi
20 Foreign Minister Samaraweera said ¢a¥ e w\§/ kmg hard t?\r av age of “genuine measures”
N

ready for discussion in Geneva human r| dies\after th{I i itional friends had been alienated and it
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reconciliation and accountabili Xrn\eeh “he sald m@vﬁns was not yet settled and was still the subject
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report on over 5 5 0 is ng/ﬁé sons. H ned that the delay of the Sri Lanka election meant there would
be little tlmefi \Eu\'uyaf( d the ni Gen \session. Sri Lanka would be working overtime to demonstrate some
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